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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
ANNUAL REPORT
CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION INTO ENGLISH OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT RELATED TO
ANNUAL REPORT ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH
To the Board of Directors of
Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı Anonim Şirketi
Report on the Audit of Board of Directors’ Annual Report Based on Standards on Auditing which is a Component of The Turkish Auditing
Standards Published by The Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”)
We have audited the accompanying annual report of Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı Anonim Şirketi (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Annual Report
Pursuant to the article 514 of the Turkish Commercial Code numbered 6102 (“TCC”) and Communiqué on the Principles of Financial Reporting In
Capital Markets numbered II – 14.1 (“Communiqué”), management is responsible for the preparation of the annual report fairly and consistent with
the financial statements and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of such annual report.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s annual report based on our audit in accordance with article 397 of the TCC and
Communiqué whether the financial information included in the accompanying annual report is consistent with the audited financial statements
expressed in the auditor’s report of the Company dated 31 January 2017 and provides fair presentation.
Our audit has been conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards (“TAS”)
published by the POA. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial information included in the annual report is consistent with the financial statements and provide fair
presentation. An audit also includes performing audit procedures in order to obtain audit evidence about the historical financial information. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial information included in the annual report is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements
and provides a fair presentation.
Report on Other Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the third clause of the article 402 of TCC, no material issue has come to our attention that shall be reported about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in accordance with TAS 570 Going Concern.
Akis Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
A member firm of KPMG International Cooperative

Erdal Tıkmak, SMMM
Partner
27 February 2017
İstanbul, Türkiye
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CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

Ziraat REIT will always strive to reach its goals to create value and invest in the
most lucrative projects which maximize the return for its shareholders.

Esteemed Shareholders,
We are proud to have finalized the establishment of the
Ziraat Real Estate Investment Trust Company (Ziraat REIT).
Our Company is determined to create value for our economy,
create world class projects and become one of the leading
REIT’s in the sector.
We are backed by Ziraat Bank, one of our country’s longest
established banks with a 153 year history, and we are proud to
work under the umbrella of the Ziraat Finance Group.
I would like to take this opportunity to thank all those
who have brought this establishment to life and for their
unwavering efforts. We hope it will prove a highly fruitful and
beneficial establishment for our country.
Our Company was established in November 2016 and raised
its total assets from TL 1,300,000,000 at the time of its
establishment to TL 1,314,873,764 by the end of the year with
a net total profit of TL 13,584,812.
Ziraat REIT was founded to diversify the products and
services offered by the Ziraat Finance Group, to contribute
to Turkey’s REIT sector, to invest in real estate or real estate
backed projects that promise a high return and to earn rental
income or capital gain. Ziraat REIT will strive to reach its goals
to create value and invest in the most lucrative projects to
maximize the return for its shareholders.
Moving forward with these goals, Ziraat REIT will resume
work on its first project, located on a 27,000 m2 plot in the
İstanbul International Finance Center, and will continue to
expand its portfolio with the aim of realizing new projects
that will add value to our country and maximize the
Company’s market value.
Yours Faithfully,
Alpaslan ÇAKAR
Chairman of the Board
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MESSAGE FROM THE CEO

Ziraat REIT’s main investment policy is to create and manage a commercial
real estate portfolio that will bring a high return in the form of regular rental
income and capital gains.

Esteemed shareholders,
Commencing operations on 1 November 2016, our Company
was established with the vision of becoming one of the
leading companies in its sector with projects that will
enhance the development of the real estate sector and
bring added value to our country, while demonstrating
consistent balance sheet growth through lucrative exclusive
projects, being an exemplary company in its sector with its
management approach and corporate values and bringing
the maximum value to its shareholders by investing in those
projects with the highest return.
Our Company has TL 1.3 billion of paid in capital, and our
assets include a number of significant properties including
the Ziraat Finance Group Towers Project - our primary project
– which is a composite development of office buildings and
commercial units to be built on 27,195.5 m² plot of land as
part of the İstanbul International Finance Center, that aims to
place İstanbul squarely as a regional and global finance hub.
Our main investment policy is to create and manage a
commercial real estate portfolio that will bring a high return
in the form of regular rental income and capital gains. To this
end, Ziraat REIT aims to maintain consistent growth, strong
cash flow and sustainable profitability, mainly through equity
funding.
I would like to extend my gratitude to our employees,
esteemed Board members and, in particular, our main
shareholder Ziraat Bankası A.Ş., with whom we started this
journey.
Yours faithfully,
Yakup DEMİRCİ
Member of the Board of Directors/CEO
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ZIRAAT REIT’s strategy is to bring a high return on a relatively low risk
investment by following the balanced finance model in its investments and
investing mostly in commercial real estate with a high rental income capacity
and high potential of capital gain.

1. INTRODUCTION

Regulations and offer its shares to the public within the
scope of Turkish Commercial Law, the Capital Markets Law
and the Communiqué on Real Estate Investment Trusts.

1.1 Reporting Period
The reporting period extends from 01.11.2016 to 31.12.2016.
1.2 Company Profile
The Ziraat Real Estate Investment Trust Company (Ziraat
REIT) was established on 1 November 2016 to operate
in accordance with the Capital Market Board’s REIT
Trade name of the Company
Trade Registry No
Address of the Head Office
Telephone
Fax
Web site
E-mail
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The Company may issue shares for the purpose of operating
and managing a portfolio composed of real estate, real
estate projects, real estate based rights, capital market
instruments and other assets, rights and instruments to be
determined by the Capital Markets Board.

Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.
54300-5
Sahrayı Cedit Mahallesi, Atatürk Caddesi, No: 48 Kat: 8-9 Kozyatağı-Kadıköy/İSTANBUL
(90 216) 369 77 72-73
(90 216) 369 77 74
www.ziraatgyo.com.tr
info@ziraatgyo.com.tr
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Vision

Mission

To become one of the leading companies in its sector
with projects that will enhance the development of the
real estate sector and bring added value to our country,
to demonstrate consistent balance sheet growth through
lucrative exclusive projects, to be an exemplary company
in its sector with its management approach and corporate
values and to bring the maximum value to its shareholders
by investing in the projects with the highest return.

To develop high quality buildings worthy of contemporary
cities and contemporary residents and to utilize its resources
and investments effectively to create and maintain
consistent growth and high profitability for its shareholders.
Strategy
To bring high returns on relatively low risk investments by
following the balanced finance model in its investments and
investing mostly in commercial real estate with high rental
income capacity and high capital gain potential.

1.3 The Company’s Organizational, Capital and Shareholder Structure

BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

Internal Audit and
Risk Management

CEO

Executive Vice
President

Project Application
and Investment
Management

Operational Affairs
Management

Investor Relations
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Capital Structure
The capital of the Company stands at TL 1,300,000,000
which is divided into 1,300,000,000 shares with a nominal
value of TL 1.00 each, with 263,758 of those shares being

privileged. TL 263,758,000 of the capital is paid in cash
while TL 1,036,242,000 is paid in kind.

Shareholder Structure
Share in the Capital
Shareholder

Group

TL

%

T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.

A

263,758,000.00

20.29

T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.

B

1,036,242,000.00

79.71

1,300,000,000.00

100.00

Total

Group A shares hold the privilege of nominating the board
of directors. All members of the board of directors, with the
exception of the independent members, are chosen from
among the nominees determined by group A shareholders
while the independent members of the board are selected
by the General Assembly among the nominees determined
by group A and group B shareholders. There are no
privileges regarding voting rights.

1.4 Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is composed of 5 members for the
term and information regarding the Board is as follows.
The principles regarding the formation, duty, authority,
responsibility and other areas are set out in the Articles 14,
15, 16, 17 and 18 of the Company’s Articles of Association.

In accordance with Article 15 of the Articles of Association,
the Chairman or the Deputy Chairman may summon
Board of Directors as deemed necessary and the Board
of Directors was summoned on 4 occasions in the period
between 1 November 2016 and 31 December 2016.

Name-Surname

Position

Term of Office

Alpaslan ÇAKAR

Chairman of the Board

19.12.2016 - 19.12.2019

Peyami Ömer ÖZDİLEK

Deputy Chairman of the Board

19.12.2016 - 19.12.2019

Yakup DEMİRCİ

Member of the Board-CEO

19.12.2016 - 19.12.2019

Levent MARMARALI

Member of the Board

19.12.2016 - 19.12.2019

Mustafa Hilmi ÇELİK

Independent Member of the Board

19.12.2016 - 19.12.2019

Mustafa ÖZKAN

Independent Member of the Board

26.01.2017 - 26.01.2020
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The resumes of the Members of the Board are as follows:

Alpaslan ÇAKAR
Chairman of the Board

Peyami Ömer ÖZDİLEK
Vice Chairman of the Board

Alpaslan Çakar graduated from the Department of Public
Administration in the Faculty of Political Science at Ankara
University. He joined Ziraat Bank in 1996 as an Assistant
Inspector and later served as an Inspector and Branch
Manager. Mr. Çakar was appointed as the Regional Head
Manager in 2005. Promoted to the position of Senior Vice
President in August 2007, Mr. Çakar served as the Executive
Vice President for Retail Banking and subsequently as the
Executive Vice President for Operational Transactions and
Executive Vice President for Retail Banking respectively.
He has been serving as the Executive Vice President for
Distribution Channels Management since January 2016.

Peyami Ömer Özdilek graduated from the Department of
Political Science and Public Administration at the Middle
East Technical University. He started to work in our Bank in
1996 as an Assistant Inspector, and after having worked in
various positions, he went on to serve as the Manager of
the London Branch, the Manager of the Gayrettepe Branch,
Senior Vice President of the Human Resources Department
and then as the Executive Vice President for Human
Resources. Mr. Özdilek has been serving as Executive Vice
President for Financial Coordination since July 2015.
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Yakup DEMİRCİ
Member of the Board and CEO

Levent MARMARALI
Board Member

Yakup Demirci graduated from the Faculty of Political
Science at Ankara University in 1987. Upon graduation, he
joined T. Halkbank A.Ş. as Assistant Inspector. Working
as an Inspector and then as the Assistant Manager of the
Credit and Risk Monitoring Department, the Manager of
Personnel Affairs Department, the Head of the Human
Resources Department and then as Executive Vice President
for Human Resources and Organization, Mr. Demirci served
in the capacity of Group Head at Ziraat Bank between
June 2015 and November 2016. He was actively involved in
the foundation of the Ziraat Real Estate Investment Trust
Company and has been serving as the CEO of Ziraat REIT
since 1 November 2016.

Born in Balıkesir in 1978, Levent Marmaralı graduated
from the Department of Civil Engineering at the Faculty
of Engineering in the Middle East Technical University in
1999. He started his career working for project companies.
Mr. Marmaralı started to work for Ziraat Bank in 2000 as
an Assistant Specialist and served as a Specialist, then as
a Director and then as a Manager. He has been serving as
the Head of Construction Department at Ziraat Bank since
January 2014.
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Mustafa Hilmi ÇELİK
Independent Board Member

Mustafa ÖZKAN
Independent Board Member

Mustafa Hilmi Çelik finished his primary, secondary and
high school education in Ankara. Upon graduation from
Gaziantep University, he completed a Master’s degree from
the Civil Engineering Department at Kırıkkale University. He
completed his military service as a Reserve Officer at the
Directorate for Construction and Real Estate. From 1998, he
served as a Site Manager and Project Manager for various
projects, after which he worked in areas of Project Design,
Building Audit, Manufacturing of Building Materials and
Construction Contracts. Since 2012, Mr. Çelik has served as
the Project and Operation Coordinator of a hydroelectric
power plant.

Mustafa Özkan graduated from the Department of
Economics at the Open Education Faculty at Anadolu
University. He started his career at the Directorate General
of Personnel at the Ministry of Finance in 1985, before
working for the Human Resources Department of the Grand
National Assembly of Turkey in 1992. He has held the post
of Undersecretary for the Speaker of the Grand National
Assembly of Turkey since 2011.

Authority and Limitations of the Board of Directors
The Chairman and the members of the Board command the authorities as stipulated in the Turkish Commercial Code and the
Company’s Articles of Association. Board members are not prohibited from taking over responsibilities or jobs outside the
Company and the Articles of the Turkish Commercial Code against competition apply. There were no cases of Board Members
acting contrary to the law on doing business with the Company or competition law within the 2016 reporting period.
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Independence Declarations
In connection with my duty as an Independent Board Member that I will perform at the Ziraat Real Estate Investment Trust
Company (“the Company”),
I hereby declare to the Board of Directors and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company that I meet the criteria
to qualify as an “independent board member” as stipulated in Communiqué II-17.1 on Corporate Governance (Published
in the Official Gazette dated 3 January 2014 and numbered 28871) and the relevant articles in the Articles of Association,
internal procedures of the Company and other relevant legislation that I have read and understood the aforementioned
legislation and documents and I will perform my duties as stipulated in those documents and legislation. Furthermore, I
meet all the criteria and qualifications and I am eligible to serve as an independent board member, and thus in this respect;
a) I do not have a relationship in terms of employment at an administrative level where I have taken on any
significant duty and responsibilities within the last five years, I do not own more than 5% of the capital or voting
rights or privileged shares either jointly or solely or did not have established a significant commercial relation
between the corporation, companies on which the corporation hold control of management or significant effect
and shareholders who hold control of management of the corporation or have significant effect in the corporation
and legal entities on which these shareholders hold control of management and myself, my spouse and my
relatives by blood or marriage up to second degree,
b) I have not been a shareholder (5% and more), an employee at an administrative level to take upon significant duty
and responsibilities or member of board of directors within the last five years in companies that the corporation
purchases or sells goods or service at a significant level within the framework of the contracts executed, especially
on audit (including tax audit, statutory audit, internal audit), rating and consulting of the corporation, at the time
period when the corporation purchases or sells services or goods.
c) I possess the professional education, knowledge and experience needed to fulfill the duties assigned as an
independent board member.
d) I reside in Turkey in accordance with the Income Tax Law (I.T.L) dated 31 December 1960 and numbered 193.
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e) I am capable of contributing positively to the operations of the corporation, maintaining my objectivity in conflicts
of interest between the corporation and the shareholders, hold strong ethical standards, a professional reputation
and experience sufficient to freely take decisions by considering the rights of the stakeholders.
f) I am able to allocate time for the corporation’s business in order to follow up the activities of the corporation and
duly fulfill the allocated duties.
g) I do not serve as an independent member of the board of directors in more than three of the corporations which
are controlled by the controlling shareholders of Ziraat REIT and in more than five corporations in total which are
admitted to the trading on the exchange.
h) I am not registered and I am not announced as a board member representing a legal entity.
Again within the scope of the aforementioned communiquè, I agree to and declare that in the event of any situation which
compromises my independence for any reason, I shall immediately notify the Board of this situation and the grounds thereof
in order to be disclosed on the Public Disclosure Platform.
Date: 19.12.2016
Name-Surname: Mustafa Hilmi Çelik
Signature
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It was the monetary policies implemented by the Central Banks of developed
countries that largely shaped global markets in 2016 as a slew of political
upsets raised uncertainties in the US and Europe.

1.5 Explanations on the Privileged Shares and Voting
Rights
Group A shares hold the privilege of nominating the board
of directors. All members of the Board of Directors, except
for the independent members, are chosen among the
nominees determined by group A shareholders while the
independent members of the board are selected by the
General Assembly among the nominees determined by the
group A and group B shareholders. There are no privileges
regarding voting rights.
1.6 Human Resources
As of December 2016, the Company had 9 employees.

2. FINANCIAL RIGHTS PROVIDED TO THE
MEMBERS OF THE GOVERNING BODY AND
SENIOR EXECUTIVES
2.1 Total sums of all material benefits such as attendance
fees, remuneration, bonuses or dividends
In line with the provisional article 1 on our Company’s
Articles of Association, the Board members were paid
a monthly salary of TL 3,500 from the inception of
the Company on 1 November 2016 and up to the first
Extraordinary General Meeting that was called on
19 December 2016. During the meeting the decision was
taken for the salary payments to remain at that level.
The total sum of salaries and other material benefits paid
to senior executives and employees was TL 197,381 between
1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016.
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2.2 Total sum of allowances, travel, accommodation and
representation expenses and cash and non-cash benefits,
insurance and similar compensations
Members of the Board of Directors did not receive any kind
of material benefit other than the attendance fees paid.

3. ECONOMIC INDICATORS
3.1 Global Macroeconomic Developments
It was the monetary policies implemented by the Central
Banks of developed countries that largely shaped global
markets in 2016 as a slew of political upsets raised
uncertainties in the US and Europe. Political developments
such as the US Presidential election and the UK’s vote to
leave the European Union (Brexit) increased obscurity in the
global economy. In this conjuncture, the European Central
Bank, Bank of England and Bank of Japan maintained their
expansionary monetary policy while the US Federal Reserve
Bank pushed through a limited increase in interest rates with
one rate hike in December 2016, following the single rate
hike back in 2015 when the FED raised interest rates for the
first time since the global economic crisis.
Volatility in the capital flows to developing countries
increased significantly in line with the perception of
uncertainty in 2016. In addition, the curtailments on oil
production by oil exporting OPEC members as well as
non-members in a move aimed at maintaining oil prices at
a reasonable level precipitated a significant increase in oil
prices and led to the decoupling of oil exporting countries.
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Under the shadow of political developments, the US
economy ended the year having achieved a moderate
recovery which was supported by the strong recovery in the
labor market. Faced with room for maneuver in monetary
policy given the inflation trend, the Fed implemented
a moderate 25 basis point increase in its policy interest
rate. The perception of ambiguity increased further ahead
of Donald Trump taking office as US President after his
election promises to follow a more closed economic policy
to guard national interests. The talk of protectionist foreign
trade policies, on the other hand, has raised question
marks over the future of trade agreements. It is expected
to put some pressure on growth and employment rates of
countries in North America and Asia - the components of
value chain of US - if conservative policies on foreign trade
are followed. The realization that the new administration will
employ expansionary fiscal policies implies that Fed may
tighten its monetary policy sooner than expected, which has
precipitated a globally strong US dollar index and sales in
the global bond markets due to the increase in yields on 10
year US Government bonds, which are largely taken as the
risk free interest rate. In this context, the implications of the
expansionary fiscal policies and foreign trade policies on the
US economy will determine the normalization of the Fed
policies in 2017.
While the UK’s vote to exit the European Union was the key
political event in Europe in 2016, the volatility in the markets
continued with the referendum in Italy. It was also a year
of heightened concerns in the banking sector primarily due
to the developments at Deutsche Bank and some Italian
banks. An environment of negative interest rates in some
countries has left the banking sector facing many problems,
squeezing banks’ profitability. Additionally, non-performing
loan ratios remain high in some countries throughout
Europe. On the back of the multiplying problems in the
region’s banking sector as well as the uncertainty posed
by the Brexit vote, the Bank of England adopted a loose
monetary policy, cutting its policy rate to its lowest since
2009. Although the market reaction to the Brexit vote was
brief, markets will be monitoring the relationship between
the countries in the medium term, given the extent of

commercial and financial transactions between the UK
and the EU. Following the Brexit outcome and the result
of the US presidential elections, the concern that populist
approaches will gain traction could be an important factor
in the unfolding of global economic policies. Hence, in
its December meeting, the European Central Bank (ECB)
extended its asset purchasing program up to the end of
2017 in an effort to protect the markets and the economy
from the uncertainties posed by the elections.
The transition of the Chinese economy from an investment
based growth model to its new normal – consumption
based growth model, although something long expected by
the markets, caused volatility in asset prices of developing
countries from time to time in 2016 due to the ongoing
capital outflows leaving the country. The agreement among
OPEC members and non-member oil exporting countries to
limit production in order to stabilize the prices, the first such
move since 2008, led to a 52% rise in oil prices. The upward
acceleration in prices, in turn caused a rally in asset prices
in those developing countries who are largely dependent
on oil exports, such as Russia and Brazil. Capital inflows
to developing countries turned to outflows on Trump’s
election as president and in 2017; the direction of capital
flows in developing countries will be largely dependent on
the Fed’s decisions and the economic policies of the new US
administration.
3.2 Macroeconomic Developments in Turkey
Turkish economy leaves behind a year fraught with volatility
in the global and local financial markets and significant
geopolitical developments. Credit rating agencies’
assessments contributed to the fluctuations in the markets,
while the process of pricing in the Fed’s tighter monetary
policies following the Presidential elections in the US led to
a further depreciation of developing countries’ currencies,
including the TL. The Central Bank of the Republic of Turkey
(CBRT) moved to stabilize the risks by taking action on
liquidity. A combination of macro prudential measures, the
government’s strict fiscal discipline, structural policies and
incentives are expected to put the economy back on a track
of moderate growth in the medium term.
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A total of 935,811 homes were sold in Turkey in the period between January
and September 2016. On the other hand, mortgage sales increased by 46.7%
YoY to 42,083 in September.

Basic Macroeconomic Indicators
GDP (%)
Current Account Deficit (USD billion)
Foreign Trade Deficit (USD billion)
Unemployment Rate (%)
CBRT Policy Interest Rate (%)
CBRT Rate of Funding (%)
CPI (%)
USD/TL
EURO/TL

2014
5.3
43.6
84.6
9.9
8.25
8.50
8.25
3.03
3.40

2015
6.0
32.3
63.4
10.3
7.50
8.80
8.80
2.92
3.18

1Q16
4.5
7.8
12.1
10.1
7.50
8.90
7.50
2.82
3.21

2Q16
4.5
11.3
15.9
10.2
7.50
8.20
7.60
2.88
3.21

3Q16
-1.8
5.7
14.0
11.3
7.50
7.80
7.30
3.00
3.36

4Q16
2.9
1.7*
8.3 **
8.00
8.30
8.50
3.52
3.71

Source: CBRT
* As of October 2016
** As of November 2016
Due to the local and global developments in 2016, growth
in the economy lost pace and there was a slowdown in
comparison to the last few years. However, with the help
of incentives and the measures taken, the economy is
expected to recover in 2017 with moderate growth. TL
based consumer loans and commercial loans are expected
to fuel credit growth and thus domestic demand, especially
following the reduction in political uncertainty after April’s
referendum. Net exports are expected to contribute to
growth in 2017 provided the increase in demand from
EU countries continues and the drive by our exporters
to diversify their markets yields success. Despite the
diminishing impact of commodity prices on the current
account deficit and the ongoing slowdown in the tourism
sector, the improvements in foreign trade are expected to
more than offset these adversities.
The annual rate of consumer inflation ended 2016 at 8.53%,
exceeding the CBRT’s expectation of 7.5% primarily due to
the accumulated impact of the exchange rate movements

14

and tax adjustments. In 2017, total demand trends are likely
to put a brake on inflation. However, the exchange rate
along with food and commodity prices will really determine
whether the CBRT can attain its year-end forecast of 8%
inflation.
The CBRT took some steps to simplify its policy in the first
quarter of 2016 as the need for a wide interest rate corridor
receded with the decreasing level of volatility in global
markets. The CBRT cut its interest rates by 250 basis points
between March and September, creating the narrowest
interest rate corridor in its history. However, amid mounting
global uncertainty in the last quarter of the year due to
the US presidential elections, the CBRT had to tighten its
policy to support the TL with a number of TL and exchange
rate liquidity measures. The CBRT is expected to resume
its simplification process and complete the construction of
a more foreseeable policy framework if there is a clear and
consistent improvement in inflation expectations.
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3.3 Developments in the Real Estate Market
A total of 935,811 homes were sold in Turkey in the period
between January and September 2016, of which 434,750
were new homes and 501,061 were previously owned homes.
In September 2016, housing sales throughout Turkey were
up by 17.8% YoY, reaching 108,918 during the month.
On the other hand, mortgage sales increased by 46.7% YoY
to 42,083 in September.
New Home Sales
130,120
152,801
140,174
175,572
598,667
139,860
152,305
142,585
196,936
631,686

1Q15
2Q15
3Q15
4Q15
2015 Total
1Q16
2Q16
3Q16
4Q16
2016 Total

Mortgage sales accounted for 36.8% of total housing sales,
with the highest number in İstanbul, where there were
7,310 mortgage sales, accounting for 17.4% of the total.
The highest ratio of mortgage sales was in Ardahan, with a
53.8% proportion.
Other housing sales increased by 4.8% in comparison with
the same month of the previous year to reach 66,835.

2nd Hand Home Sales
167,098
185,061
161,361
177,133
690,653
163,604
175,030
162,427
208,706
709,767

Total Sales
297,218
337,862
301,535
352,705
1,289,320
303,464
327,335
305,012
405,642
1,341,453

Mortgage Sales
115,445
126,652
95,459
96,832
434,388
95,861
105,223
102,297
146,127
449,508

Source: Turkish Statistical Institute
Correlation between Interest Rates on housing loans and the growth rate for housing loans:
35,000%

Annual Growth Rate for Housing Loans

Interest Rates on Housing Loans

30,000%
25,000%
20,000%
15,000%
10,000%

11-16

09-16

07-16

05-16

03-16

01-16

11-15

09-15

07-15

05-15

03-15

11-14

01-15

09-14

07-14

05-14

03-14
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09-13
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05-13

01-13

0,000%
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5,000%
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3.4 Office Market Outlook / Current and Future Supply / Total Rental Transaction Volume
At the end of 2016, there was approximately 4.5 million m2 of A class office space while the area of office space under
construction stood at 2.5 million m2 with the total supply expected to reach 7 million m2 by the end of 2018.

İstanbul European Side

CBD
Non-CBD

İstanbul Asian Side
Total

Office Space
Unit
TRA
88
1,794,333
49
1,199,710
111
1,507,852
248
4,501,895

Under Construction
Unit
TRA
7
299,896
11
693,250
18
1,557,552
36
2,550,668

Unit
95
60
129
284

Total
TRA
2,094,229
1,892,960
3,065,404
7,052,563

Source: JLL
Unit: Number of Buildings
TRA: Total Rentable Area
CBD: Central Business District
In 2016, the office vacancy rate in İstanbul’s CBD stood at 17.1%.
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54,368

59,006

61,300

56,196

24,108

13,627

50,000

8,945

100,000

40,529

127,815

175,798

159,065

108,977

150,000

80,756

101,918

200,000

126,890

Building Permits (million m2)

0

Source: Turkish Statistical Institute

4. THE COMPANY ACTIVITIES AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN ACTIVITIES
4.1 Information Regarding Investments Undertaken by the Company in the Accounting Period
The capital of the Company is divided into 1,300,000,000 shares with a total nominal value of TL 1,300,000,000, which was
subscribed entirely by the founders with TL 263,758,000 paid in cash and TL 1,036,242,000 paid in kind (land and real estate).
Real estate
Maslak Building
Beyoğlu Building
Beyazıt Building
Kozyatağı Building
Bahçekapı Building
Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet St.)
Kadıköy Building
Mecidiyeköy Building
Cağaloğlu Building
Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa St.)
Sub-Total
Land
İstanbul International Finance Center Land
Total

Capital paid in kind
126,300,000
69,472,000
36,600,000
30,270,000
26,350,000
25,380,000
25,410,000
21,610,000
17,760,000
14,090,000
393,242,000
643,000,000
1,036,242,000

Details for investment property as of 31 December 2016 are as follows:
Investment property
Investment property under operating lease
Investment property under construction
Total

31 December 2016
396,667,905
643,290,000
1,039,957,905
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İstanbul International
Finance Project
KOHN PEDERSEN FOX ASSOCIATES
PC, the world renowned office space
architects, prepared the architecture
project for the Ziraat Towers.
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İstanbul International Finance Center Land
The land of the İstanbul International Finance Center is
registered in Küçükbakkalköy, in the Ümraniye District,
İstanbul over 3,328 plots and 3 parcels. The land has an area
of 27,195.50 m2.
According to the appraisal report dated 30 December 2016,
the fair value of the land earmarked for the İstanbul
International Finance Center as per the cost approach
(based on the project’s current construction completion
rate) is TL 643,290,000. There are no restrictions on
investment property. The project is being developed within
the scope of the İstanbul International Finance Center.
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Real Estate Portfolio
Ziraat REIT is focused on continuing
to expand its portfolio with the aim
of realizing new projects that will add
value to our country and maximize the
Company’s market value.
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Maslak Building
The Maslak Building is registered in Ayazağa in the Sarıyer
District, İstanbul over 10 plots and 7 parcels over an 8,000
m2. It consists of 18 independent units in the B and C blocks
of 3 masonry office blocks, which constitute the main
property.
The fair value of the Maslak Building, according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, is TL 127,380,000
as calculated according to the Direct Capitalization Method.
There are no restrictions on the investment property.
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Beyoğlu Building
The Beyoğlu Building is registered in Şehitmuhtar in the
Beyoğlu District, İstanbul over 381 plots and one parcel. The
area of the building is 410 m2.
The fair value of the Beyoğlu Building according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, calculated with
the Peer Comparison Method, is TL 70,510,000. There are no
restrictions on the investment property.
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Beyazıt Building
The Beyazıt Building is registered in Mimar Hayrettin in the
Fatih District, İstanbul Province over 225 plots and 23 parcels.
The area of the land and masonry building is 362.5 m2.
The fair value of the Beyazıt Building according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, calculated with
the peer appraisal approach, is TL 37,000,000. There are no
restrictions on the investment property.
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Kozyatağı Building
The Kozyatağı Building is registered in Sahrayı Cedit in the
Kadıköy District, İstanbul over 1,437 plots and 110 parcels.
The area of the land and the 12 storeys reinforced concrete
building is 1,700.21 m2.
The fair value of the Kozyatağı Building according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, calculated with
the Peer Comparison Method, is TL 31,500,000. However,
two storeys (8th and 9th floors) of the Kozyatağı Building are
used as the headquarters of Ziraat REIT. The fair value of
these two storeys is TL 3,407,095, which has been classified
as buildings in the tangible assets in the books. There are no
restrictions on the investment property.
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Bahçekapı Building
The Bahçekapı Building is registered in Hobyar, in the Fatih
District, İstanbul over 398 plots and 12 parcels. The area
of the masonry building, with three shops located on the
ground floor of the building, is 378.50 m2.
The fair value of the Bahçekapı Building according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, and calculated
with the Peer Comparison Method, is TL 26,900,000. There
are no restrictions on the investment property.
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Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet Street)
The Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet Street) is registered
in Çakırağa in the Fatih District, İstanbul, over 1762 plots
and 1 parcel. The area of the land and nine storey reinforced
concrete building is 1,000.95 m2.
The fair value of the Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal
Millet Street) according to the appraisal report dated
30 December 2016, calculated with the Peer Comparison
Method, is TL 26,500,000. There are no restrictions on the
investment property.
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Kadıköy Building
The Kadıköy Building is registered in Osmanağa, Kadıköy,
İstanbul over 26 plots and one parcel. The area of the
masonry building is 477.50 m2.
The fair value of the Kadıköy Building according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, calculated with
the direct capitalization approach, is TL 25,985,000. There
are no restrictions on the investment property.
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Mecidiyeköy Building
The Mecidiyeköy Building is registered in Mecidiyeköy, in the
Şişli district, İstanbul over 2,158 plots and 52 parcels. The
area of the masonry building, with a bank branch located on
the ground floor of the building, is 265.20 m2.
The fair value of the Mecidiyeköy Building, according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, calculated with
the Peer Comparision Method, is TL 22,000,000. There are
no restrictions on the investment property.
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Cağaloğlu Building
The Cağaloğlu Building is registered in Alemdar in the Fatih
District, İstanbul over 33 plots and 22 parcels. The area of
the shop and its garden is 1,286.20 m2.
The fair value of the Cağaloğlu Building, according to the
appraisal report dated 30 December 2016, calculated with
the Peer Comparison Method, is TL 17,800,000. There are no
restrictions on the investment property.
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Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa Street)
The Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa Street) is registered in Çakırağa in the Fatih District, İstanbul over 1,763 plots and 		
8 parcels. The area of the land and masonry bank building is 426 m2.
The fair value of the Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa Street) according to the appraisal report dated 30 December 2016,
calculated with the Peer Comparison Method, is TL 14,500,000. There are no restrictions on the investment property.
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Real Estate Portfolio

Land

Office

62%

38%

The breakdown of investments in the real estate sector is
38% for office space and 62% for land.

Real Estate
Offices
Kadıköy Building
Kozyatağı Building
Cağaloğlu Building
Mecidiyeköy Building
Aksaray Building
(Turgut Özal St.)
Aksaray Building
(Cerrahpaşa St.)
Beyoğlu Building
Bahçekapı Building
Beyazıt Building
Maslak Building
Land
İstanbul International
Finance Center Land
Total

Acquisition
Date

Appraisal
Date

08.11.2016
08.11.2016
10.11.2016
10.11.2016

30.12.2016
30.12.2016
30.12.2016
30.12.2016

Appraised
Value (TL)
400,075,000
25,985,000
31,500,000
17,800,000
22,000,000

10.11.2016 30.12.2016

26,500,000

10.11.2016 30.12.2016

14,500,000

09.11.2016
10.11.2016
10.11.2016
09.11.2016

30.12.2016
30.12.2016
30.12.2016
30.12.2016

70,510,000
26,900,000
37,000,000
127,380,000
643,290,000

08.11.2016 30.12.2016

643,290,000
1,043,365,000

The real estate portfolio that delivers rental income is comprised entirely of office buildings and the contract duration is 5 years.
Offices
Kadıköy Building
Kozyatağı Building
Cağaloğlu Building
Mecidiyeköy
Building
Aksaray Building
(Turgut Özal St.)
Aksaray Building
(Cerrahpaşa St.)
Beyoğlu Building 2
Bahçekapı Building
Beyazıt Building
Maslak Building
1
2

1

Name of Tenant
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.

Starting Date
of Rent

Rental
Period

Monthly
Rental Value

Appraised
Rental Value

08.11.2016

5 years

TL 129,915

TL 129,915

08.11.2016

5 years

TL 147,774

TL 170,285

10.11.2016

5 years

TL 108,040

TL 108,040

10.11.2016

5 years

TL 126,014.6

USD 35,680TL 126,014

10.11.2016

5 years

TL 173,000

TL 157,920

10.11.2016

5 years

TL 86,040

TL 86,040

10.11.2016

5 years

TL 279,888

10.11.2016

5 years

147,240.70

10.11.2016

5 years

TL 231,144

TL 231,144

09.11.2016

5 years

TL 743,023

USD 210,380TL 743,023

USD 99,060TL 349,860
USD 41,690 TL 147,240.70

The 8th and 9th floors of the Kozyatağı Building serve as the headquarters of Ziraat REIT.
A 20% reduction on the appraised rent was made for the Beyoğlu Building with the Board resolution dated 20 January 2017. The resolution aims to ensure
that the parties are not harmed by the contract between Ziraat REIT and the current tenant and that they maintain the current relationship without setting any
ground for a conflict of interest.
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4.2 Information regarding the Internal Control Systems
and Internal Audit of the Company, and the Opinion of the
Governing Body thereof
Our Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure
that the Company’s operations enhance the preservation of
the Company’s assets; to ensure compliance with the laws
and regulations, company policies and principles, sector
norms and practices; to ensure the reliability and integrity
of the accounting and financial reporting systems and
to ensure ability to extract information from the systems
in a timely manner. The Company’s year-end financial
statements are audited by the independent auditor, Akis
Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik
A.Ş. (a member of KPMG International Cooperative).
4.3 Extraordinary General Meeting Held During the Year
Ziraat REIT called an Extraordinary General Meeting which
was held on 19 December 2016 at 2:00pm at the address
of Sahrayı Cedit Mah. Atatürk Cad. No: 48 Kat: 8 Kozyatağı
Kadıköy/ İstanbul.
The following issues were resolved during the Extraordinary
General Meeting:
Election of Board of Directors and Determination of Their
Term of Office
It was unanimously resolved that the following persons
would be appointed as board members for a term of three
years:

Remuneration of Board Members
In a unanimous decision, it was resolved that board
members would be paid a net salary of TL 3,500 per
month and that the Company would reimburse travel and
accommodation expenses related to board meetings.
Additionally, in the event of a tax burden arising from Board
members receiving salaries from more than one employer,
the tax burden resulting from the salary paid by the
Company will be reimbursed.
Approval of the Internal Directive Regarding the Working
Procedures of the General Assembly
The internal directive prepared by the Board of Directors
regarding the working procedures of the General Assembly
was approved unanimously.
Election of an Independent Auditor
The resolution of the Board of Directors numbered 1/7 and
dated 1 December 2016 regarding the procurement of the
independent financial auditing services from Akis Bağımsız
Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş. was
approved unanimously.
Resolution regarding permission as per articles 395 and
396 of the Turkish Commercial Code
It has been unanimously decided that the board of directors
would be granted permission in accordance with articles
395 and 396 of the Turkish Commercial Code.

Mr. Alpaslan ÇAKAR-Member
Mr. Peyami Ömer ÖZDİLEK-Member
Mr. Yakup DEMİRCİ-Member
Mr. Mustafa Hilmi ÇELİK-Independent Member
Mr. Levent MARMARALI-Member
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5. 01.11.2016-31.12.2016 BOARD OF DIRECTORS AFFILIATION REPORT
This report has been prepared in accordance with article 199 of the Turkish Commercial Code Law No. 6102. The amounts
stipulated in the report are denominated in TL.
1. Transactions Carried out by Controlling and Affiliated Companies

Cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables from related parties
31 December 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance of T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
- Time Deposits
Total

266,729,046
266,729,046
266,729,046
31 December 2016

Trade receivables from related parties
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Ziraat Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
Ziraat Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş.
Total
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3,652,218
209,244
184,652
184,652
96,666
21,869
4,349,301
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Income and expenses from related parties
Related Party
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Ziraat Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
Ziraat Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş.
Total

1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016
Rental Income
3,095,100
177,325
156,485
156,485
81,921
18,533
3,685,849

Interest Income
4,481,874
-----4,481,874

Total
7,576,974
177,325
156,485
156,485
81,921
18,533
8,167,723

For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016, the Company earns whole amount of its revenue from its related parties.

Related Party
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş.
Total

1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016
Salary Reflection
Insurance
Expenses
Expenses
115,325
--82,002
-1,505
115,325
83,507

Management
Expenses
5,359
--5,359

Total
120,684
82,002
1,505
204,191

1.1 Transactions by the Controlling Company

1.1.2 Expenses

1.1.1 Income

a) Salary Reflection Expenses

a) Rental Income

Payments committed by Türkiye Cumhuriyeti Ziraat Bankası
A.Ş. to personnel during the establishment of our Company
totaled TL 115,325.

A total of 9 rentable properties in our Company’s real estate
portfolio were rented to Türkiye Cumhuriyeti Ziraat Bankası
A.Ş. and the rents were determined in accordance with the
Capital Market Board’s Communiquè on the Principles of
Real Estate Investment Companies. The total rental income
for the year stood at TL 3,095,100.

b) Management Expenses
The cleaning and maintenance expenses of our head
offices amounted to TL 5,359, which was paid to Türkiye
Cumhuriyeti Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.

b) Interest Income
A total of TL 4,481,874 of interest income was earned from
term deposits held at Türkiye Cumhuriyeti Ziraat Bankası
A.Ş. These transactions did not benefit the controlling
company or the dependent companies and our Company
did not incur any losses.
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1.2 Transactions by the Affiliated Companies
1.2.1 Income

Rental Income
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş. (Ziraat Participation Bank)
Properties in our Company’s portfolio, situated at the
addresses of Mimar Hayrettin Mahallesi, Ordu Caddesi,
No: 55 Beyazıt- Fatih / İstanbul, Alemdar Mahallesi, Bab-ı Ali
Caddesi, No: 4 Cağaloğlu - Fatih / İstanbul and at Osmanağa
Mahallesi, Rıhtım Cad. No: 4 Kadıköy / İstanbul were rented
out to Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş. and TL 177,325 of rental
income was recorded in 2016. These transactions did not
benefit the controlling company or dependent companies
and our Company did not incur any losses.
Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş. (Ziraat Life and Pension)
Properties in our Company’s portfolio, situated at the
addresses of Aksaray Mah. Turgut Özal Millet Cad No: 7 Fatih
/ İstanbul and at Aksaray Mahallesi Cerrahpaşa Cad. No: 1
Fatih / İstanbul were rented out to Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik
A.Ş. and TL 156,485 of rental income was recorded in 2016.
These transactions did not benefit the controlling company
or dependent companies, and our Company did not incur
any losses.
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Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş. (Ziraat Insurance)
Properties in our Company’s portfolio, situated at the
addresses of Aksaray Mah. Turgut Özal Millet Cad No: 7
Fatih / İstanbul and at Aksaray Mahallesi Cerrahpaşa Cad.
No: 1 Fatih / İstanbul were rented out to Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
and TL 156,485 of rental income was recorded in 2016.
These transactions did not benefit the controlling company
or dependent companies, and our Company did not incur
any losses.
Ziraat Finansal Kiralama A.Ş. (Ziraat Leasing)
The property in our Company’s portfolio, situated at the
address of Mecidiyeköy Mahallesi, Büyükdere Caddesi,
No: 83 Şişli / İstanbul was rented out to Ziraat Finansal
Kiralama A.Ş. and TL 81,921 of rental income was recorded
in 2016. These transactions did not benefit the controlling
company or dependent companies, and our Company did
not incur any losses.
Ziraat Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş. (Ziraat Investment)
The property in our Company’s portfolio, situated at the
address of Hobyar Mahallesi, Yeni Postane Cad. No: 33
Eminönü-Fatih / İstanbul was rented out to Ziraat Yatırım
Menkul Değerler A.Ş. and TL 18,533 of rental income was
recorded in 2016. These transactions did not benefit the
controlling company or dependent companies, and our
Company did not incur any losses.
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1.2.2 Expenses
a) Insurance Expenses
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
An insurance expense of TL 82,002 was reported for
insurance policies written by Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş. against fire
risk in the buildings and healthcare coverage for personnel
within the scope of fringe benefits. These transactions did
not bring any benefit to the controlling company or to
dependent companies, and our Company did not incur any
losses as a result of these transactions.
Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş.
An insurance expense of TL 1,505 was reported for private
pension schemes and standard group life insurance policies
within the scope of fringe benefits for personnel bought
from Ziraat Hayat ve Emeklilik A.Ş. These transactions have
not benefited the controlling company or the dependent
companies and our Company did not incur any losses as a
result of the transactions.

2. Transactions undertaken by the lead of the Controlling
Company
None.
3. Transactions for the Benefit of the Controlling Company
or Affiliated Companies
None.
Measures Taken
All of the transactions that took place between our Company
and our main shareholder, T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş. and
our Group companies in 2016 were a result of our regular
commercial activities and took place at the appropriate
distance from the Company. Leasing transactions were
performed in line with the appraisal reports prepared by real
estate appraisal company and product and services were
purchased by tenders. Our Company is fully compliant with the
communiquès and regulations of the Capital Market Board.
At the time of the transaction a comparable counter service
or product was obtained and therefore concluded that no
measures which would have harmed the Company financially
were taken, while there were no incidences where measures
were not taken when required.
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6. FINANCIAL POSITION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)-TL
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
- Due from related parties
Prepayment
- Due from related parties
- Due from other parties
Other current assets
- Due from other parties
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Investment property
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Short-term Liabilities
Trade payables
- Other trade payables
Other short-term liabilities
- Due to other parties
Total short-term liabilities
Total long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Equity
Paid in capital
Other comprehensive income non-reclassified to profit or loss
- Gain/(losses) on revaluation and reclassification
- Increase/(decrease) in revaluation of tangible assets
Net profit for the period
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES
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Audited
31 December 2016
266,729,046
4,349,301
4,349,301
4,133
3,144
989
358,877
358,877
271,441,357
1,039,957,905
3,407,095
67,407
1,043,432,407
1,314,873,764
Audited
31 December 2016
517,684
517,684
627,315
627,315
1,144,999
-1,144,999

1,300,000,000
143,953
143,953
143,953
13,584,812
1,313,728,765
1,314,873,764
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME-TL

Statement of profit or loss

Audited
1 November-31 December 2016

Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

8,167,723
(1,039)
8,166,684

Administrative expenses
Marketing expenses
Other operating income
Operating profit

(1,145,773)
(276,700)
6,840,601
13,584,812

Finance income/(cost)

--

Tax expense

--

Net profit for the period
Earnings per share

13,584,812
0,0104

Part of other comprehensive income
Non-reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus of tangible asset

143,953
143,953

Other comprehensive income

143,953

Total comprehensive income

13,728,765

Distribution of Profit
The proposal of the Board of Directors in line with resolution numbered 7/8 dated 28.02.2017 to retain the profit made in
the relevant accounting period due to the funding requirement for the İstanbul International Finance Center Project will be
submitted to the General Assembly for approval.
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7. RISKS AND THE EVALUATION OF THE GOVERNING BODY
The Company aims to minimize risk by identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling the risks it is exposed to through
the policies, procedures and limits introduced to monitor, control and if necessary change the quality and level of the
activities of the Company depending on the risk and return structure indicated by future cash flows.
The monitoring of compliance with the Company’s portfolio limitations within the framework of the provisions of the
“Communiqué on Principles of Real Estate Investment Companies” is as follows:
APPENDIX 1 COMPLIANCE WITH PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS
Primary account items of the financial statements
A Capital and money market instruments
B Real estates, real estate projects and rights supported by real estates
C Subsidiaries
Due from related parties (other receivables)
Other assets

Related regulations
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(b)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(a)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(b)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 23/(f)

31 December 2016
266,729,046
1,039,957,905
--8,186,813

D Total assets

III, No: 48.1, Art. 3/(p)

1,314,873,764

E
F
G
H
I

III, No: 48.1, Art. 31
III, No: 48.1, Art. 31
III, No: 48.1, Art. 31
III, No: 48.1, Art. 23/(f)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 31

----1,313,728,765
1,144,999

III, No: 48.1, Art. 3/(p)

1,314,873,764

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Leasing payables
Payables from related parties (non-commercial)
Equity
Other liabilities

D Total liabilities and equity
Other separate financial information
A1 Capital and money market instruments amount held for 3-year real estate
payments
A2 Time balances/demand balances TL/foreign currency
A3 Foreign capital market instruments
B1 Foreign real estates, real estate projects and rights supported by real estates
B2 Inactive land
C1 Foreign subsidiaries
C2 Participating to operating company
J Non-cash loans
K Mortgage amounts of the mortgaged lands that the project will be
developed on without ownership
L The sum of investments in money and capital market instruments in a single
company
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Related regulation

31 December 2016

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(b)

239,105,046

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(b)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(d)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(d)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(c)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(d)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 28/1 (a)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 31

266,729,046
-------

III, No: 48.1, Art. 22/(e)

--

III, No: 48.1, Art. 22/(l)

--
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1

2
3
4

5
6
7
8
9

Portfolio restrictions
Mortgage amounts of the mortgaged lands
that the project will be developed on without
ownership
Real estates, rights supported by real estates
and real estate projects
Capital and money market instruments and
subsidiaries
Foreign real estates, rights supported by real
estates and real estate projects, subsidiaries and
capital market instruments
Inactive land
Participating to operating company
Borrowing limits
Time balances / demand balances TL / foreign
currency
The sum of investments in money and capital
market instruments in a single company

Related regulation

31.12.2016

Max/min
ratio

Calculation

III, No: 48.1, Art. 22/(e)

0%

Max 10%

K/D

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/
(a), (b)

97%

Min 51%

(B+A1)/D

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(b)

38%

Max 49%

(A+C-A1)/D

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(d)

0%

Max 49%

(A3+B1+C1)/D

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(c)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 28/1(a)
III, No: 48.1, Art. 31

0%
0%
0%

Max 20%
Max 10%
Max 500%

B2/D
C2/D
(E+F+G+H+J)/İ

III, No: 48.1, Art. 24/(b)

2%

Max 10%

(A2-A1)/D

III, No: 48.1, Art. 22/(l)

0%

Max 10%

L/D

8. PROCUREMENT OF CONSULTANCY, AUDIT AND APPRAISAL SERVICES
Tax Advisor

Real Estate Appraisal Firm

Yetkin Yeminli Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.

TSKB Gayrimenkul Değerleme A.Ş.

Independent Audit Firm

Our Company complies with the relevant capital market
regulations during the procurement of services and shows
the highest dedication to preventing any potential conflicts
of interest.

Akis Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali
Müşavirlik A.Ş. (a member of KPMG International)
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD
1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016 WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT THEREON
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Akis Bağımsız Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
Kavacık Rüzgarlı Bahçe Mah. Kavak Sok.
No: 29 Beykoz 34805 İstanbul
Tel +90 (216) 681 90 00
Fax +90 (216) 681 90 90
www.kpmg.com.tr

To the Board of Directors of Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı Anonim Şirketi,
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı Anonim Şirketi (“the
Company”) which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016 and for the period 1 November 2016
- 31 December 2016, the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows, and notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with standards on auditing issued by the Capital Markets Board of Turkey (“CMB”) and Independent Standards
on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public Oversight Accounting
and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained during our audit is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Akis Bağımsız Denetim ve
Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
Kavacık Rüzgarlı Bahçe Mah. Kavak Sok.
No: 29 Beykoz 34805 İstanbul
Tel +90 (216) 681 90 00
Fax +90 (216) 681 90 90
www.kpmg.com.tr

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Ziraat Gayrimenkul
Yatırım Ortaklığı Anonim Şirketi as at 31 December 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the period
1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards.
Emphasis of Matter
As explained in Note 3 to the financial statements, the Company earns whole amount of its revenue from its related parties.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”); no significant matter has
come to our attention that causes us to believe that for the period 1 November - 31 December 2016, the Company’s
bookkeeping activities and financial statements are not in compliance with TCC and provisions of the Company’s articles
of association in relation to financial reporting.
2) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Directors provided us the necessary
explanations and required documents in connection with the audit.
Akis Bağımsız Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Müşavirlik A.Ş.
A member of KPMG International Cooperative

Erdal Tıkmak, SMMM
Partner
31 January 2017
İstanbul, TÜRKİYE
(Convenience Translation of Financial Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes Originally Issued in Turkish, See
Note 2.1.1)
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

ASSETS

Notes

Audited
31 December 2016

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade receivables
- Due from related parties
Prepayment
- Due from related parties
- Due from other parties
Other current assets
- Due from other parties
Total current assets

4
5
3
11
3
11
11
11

266.729.046
4.349.301
4.349.301
4.133
3.144
989
358.877
358.877
271.441.357

Non-current assets
Investment property
Tangible assets
Intangible assets
Total non-current assets

6
7
8

1.039.957.905
3.407.095
67.407
1.043.432.407

TOTAL ASSETS

1.314.873.764

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2016
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (BALANCE SHEET)
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

LIABILITIES

Notes

Short-term Liabilities
Trade payables
- Other trade payables
Other short-term liabilities
- Due to other parties
Total short-term liabilities

5
5
11
11

Total long-term liabilities

Audited
31 December 2016

517.684
517.684
627.315
627.315
1.144.999
--

Total liabilities

1.144.999

Equity
Paid in capital
Other comprehensive income non-reclassified to profit or loss
- Gain/(losses) on revaluation and reclassification
- Increase/(decrease) in revaluation of tangible assets
Net profit for the period
Total equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES

12

7

1.300.000.000
143.953
143.953
143.953
13.584.812
1.313.728.765
1.314.873.764

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Note

Audited
1 November31 December 2016

Statement of profit or loss
Sales
Cost of sales
Gross profit

13
13

8.167.723
(1.039)
8.166.684

Administrative expenses
Marketing expenses
Other operating income
Operating profit

14
14
15

(1.145.773)
(276.700)
6.840.601
13.584.812

Finance income/(cost)

--

Tax expense

--

Net profit for the period

13.584.812

Earnings per share

18

0,0104

7

143.953
143.953

Part of other comprehensive income
Non-reclassified to profit or loss
Revaluation surplus of tangible asset
Other comprehensive income

143.953

Total comprehensive income

13.728.765

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Notes
Founding capital
Non-cash capital
Cash capital
Total founding capital
Total comprehensive income
(loss)
Period income (loss)
Other comprehensive income
(loss)
Balance 31 December 2016

12
12

12

Share
Capital

Other
comprehensive
income
non- reclassified
Accumulated
to profit or loss
profit
Revaluation
surplus/deficit of Net profit/(loss)
tangible asset
for the period

Equity

1.036.242.000
263.758.000
1.300.000.000

----

-- 1.036.242.000
-263.758.000
-- 1.300.000.000

---

143.953
--

13.584.812
13.584.812

13.728.765
13.584.812

-1.300.000.000

143.953
143.953

-13.584.812

143.953
1.313.728.765

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Notes
A- CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit for the period
Adjustments to reconcile profit
Adjustments to depreciation and amortization
Adjustments related to interest (income) and expenses
- Adjustments related to interest income
Adjustments related to fair value of loss (income)
- Adjustments related to fair value of investment properties income
Changes in working capital
Change in trade receivables
- Change in due from related parties
Change in repayments
Change in trade payables
- Change in due from other parties
Other changes in working capital
- Change in operating assets
- Change in other operating liabilities
Cash generated from operating activities
Interest receivables
B- CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash outflow from purchases of tangible and intangible assets
- Cash outflow from purchases of intangible assets
Cash outflow from purchase of investment properties
C- CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Founding capital as cash
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEFORE EFFECT OF
CHANGES IN FOREIGN CURRENCY RATES (A+B+C)
Effect of changes in foreign currency rates over cash and cash equivalents
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

7, 8

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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13
15

8
6

4

Audited
1 November31 December 2016
1.100.726
13.584.812
(11.308.368)
14.107
(4.481.874)
(4.481.874)
(6.840.601)
(6.840.601)
(3.567.312)
(4.349.301)
(4.349.301)
(4.133)
517.684
517.684
268.438
(358.877)
627.315
(1.290.868)
2.391.594
(219.960)
(70.600)
(70.600)
(149.360)
263.758.000
263.758.000
264.638.766
-264.638.766
-264.638.766
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
The main objective and operations of the Company are to engage in activities regulated by the Capital Markets Board of
Turkey (“CMB”) related with the Real Estate Investment Corporations such as; properties, property oriented capital market
instruments, real estate projects and investing in capital market instruments. Basis of operations of the Company are
consistent with the regulatory requirements of CMB on the Principles of Real Estate Investment Trusts.
The Company was established on 1 November 2016. The capital of the company TL 1.300.000.000, is split into
1.300.000.000 pieces and whole amount is subscribed by the founders. Amount of TL 263.758.000 was paid in cash,
TL 1.036.242.000 was paid non-cash (Land and Buildings).
The headquarter of the Company is registered in Sahrayı Cedit Mah. Atatürk Cad. Kozyatağı No: 48/8-9 34734 Kadıköyİstanbul. As at 31 December 2016 the number of personnel employed in the Company is 9.
The Company is a subsidiary of Türkiye Cumhuriyeti Ziraat Bankası A.Ş. (“Ziraat Bankası”) and was registered on
1 November 2016. According to the CMB the Communiqué on the Principles of Real Estate Investment Trusts, it is obligatory
that the shares of trusts representing a minimum 25% of their capital be issued within three months of either being
established as a real estate investment trust or the related amendment to the articles of association being registered with
the Trade Registry, are offered to public and that they apply to the CMB with the request that all shares to be registered.
Relevant duration for the company will expire at 1 February 2017.
2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.1. Basis of presentation
2.1.1. Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the communiqué No: II, 14.1 “Communiqué on Financial
Reporting Standards in Capital Markets” (“Communiqué”) promulgated by CMB, which is published at 13 June 2013 in the
Official Gazette numbered 28676 and in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”), issued by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). TAS; Turkish Accounting Standards is composed of Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards with related additions and interpretations.
The statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and statement of profit or loss, statement of other
comprehensive income have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 January 2017. The General Assembly
and the legal authorities have the authority to amend the statutory financial statements and these financial statements.
Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English
The differences between accounting principles, as described in the preceding paragraphs, and the accounting principles
generally accepted in countries, in which the accompanying financial statements are to be distributed, may have significant
influence on the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements are not intended
to present the financial position and results of operations in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
such countries.
2.1.2. Basis of presentation of financial statements
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the “Announcement on Financial Statements
and Footnote Formats” of CMB dated 7 June 2013. Also, the attached financial statements are presented sternly to the
taxonomy of TAS, which is declared by POA’s 30 numbered decision at 2 June 2016.
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

2.1.3. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Turkish Lira (“TL”), which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial
information is presented in TL unless otherwise stated.
2.1.4. Comparative information
The accompanying financial statements are presented comparatively in order to identify trends in the Company’s financial
position, performance and cash flows. Where necessary, in order to meet the consistency with the presentation of the
financial statements in the current period, comparative figures are reclassified and material changes are disclosed in the
related notes. There isn’t any comparison period whereas the company is founded as of 1 November 2016.
2.2. Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by the Company to all periods presented in the
financial statements.
2.3. Changes in accounting estimates and errors
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with TAS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are audited on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.
The significant estimates and judgments used by the Company are included in the following note:
Note 6 - Fair value measurement of investment property
Note 7 - Fair value measurement of fixed asset
Measurement of fair values
A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities.
Fair values are categorised into different levels based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Classification require the use of observable market data if available.
Fair value measurement is used in the note below:
Note 6 - Fair value measurement of investment property
Note 7 - Fair value measurement of fixed asset
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

2.4. New standards and interpretations implemented and not yet adopted as at 31 December 2016
Standards issued but not yet effective and not early adopted
Standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are issued but not yet effective up to the date of
issuance of the financial statements are as follows. The Company will make the necessary changes if not indicated otherwise,
which will be affecting the financial statements and disclosures, after the new standards and interpretations become in
effect.
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Classification and measurement
As amended in December 2012, the new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Phase 1 of this new TFRS 9 introduces new requirements for classifying and measuring financial assets and liabilities. The
amendments made to TFRS 9 will mainly affect the classification and measurement of financial assets and measurement
of fair value option (“FVO”) liabilities and requires that the change in fair value of a FVO financial liability attributable to
credit risk is presented under other comprehensive income. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process of
assessing the impact of the standard on the financial position or performance of the Company.
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
As issued in September 2016, the new standard replaces existing TFRS guidance and introduces a new control-based
revenue recognition model for contracts with customers. In the new standard, total consideration measured will be the
amount to which the Company expects to be entitled, rather than fair value and new guidance have been introduced on
separating goods and services in a contract and recognising revenue over time. The standard is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted under TFRS. The Company is in the process of assessing
the impact of the standard on the financial position or performance of the Company.
The new standards, amendments and interpretations that are issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
but not issued by POA
The following standards, interpretations and amendments to existing IFRS standards are issued by the IASB but not yet
effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements. However, these standards, interpretations and amendments
to existing IFRS standards are not yet adapted/issued to TFRS by the POA, thus they do not constitute part of TFRS.
Such standards, interpretations and amendments that are issued by the IASB but not yet issued by the POA are referred
to as IFRS or IAS. The Company will make the necessary changes to its financial statements after the new standards and
interpretations are issued and become effective under TFRS.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and amendments to TFRS 9, TFRS 7 and TAS 39 - (2013)
In November 2013, the IASB issued a new version of IFRS 9, which includes the new hedge accounting requirements and
some related amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7. Entities may make an accounting policy choice to continue to apply the
hedge accounting requirements of IAS 39 for all of their hedging transactions. Further, the new standard removes the
1 January 2015 effective date of IFRS 9. The new version of IFRS 9 issued after IFRS 9 (2013) introduces the mandatory
effective date of 1 January 2018 for IFRS 9, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process of assessing the
impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Company.
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(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (2014)
IFRS 9, published in July 2014, replaces the existing guidance in IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement.
IFRS 9 includes revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments including a new expected
credit loss model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and the new general hedge accounting requirements. It also
carries forward the guidance on recognition and de-recognition of financial instruments from TAS 39. IFRS 9 is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is in the process
of assessing the impact of the standard on financial position or performance of the Company.
IFRS 16 Leases
On 13 January 2016, IASB published the new leasing standard which will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining Whether
an Arrangement Contains a Lease, SIC 15 Operating Leases - Incentives, and SIC 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease and consequently change IAS 40 Investment Properties. IFRS 16 eliminates the current
dual accounting model for lessees, which distinguishes between on-balance sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet
operating leases. Instead, there is a single, on-balance sheet accounting model that is similar to current finance lease
accounting. Lessor accounting remains similar to current practice. The standard is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019, with early adoption permitted provided that an entity also adopts IFRS 15-Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or
performance of the Company.
IFRIC 22 - Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The amendments clarifies the accounting for transactions that include the receipt or payment of advance consideration in a
foreign currency. The Interpretation covers foreign currency transactions when an entity recognizes a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognizes the
related asset, expense or income. The date of the transaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date
of initial recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each payment or receipt. The amendment is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with earlier application is permitted. The Company is in the process of
assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or performance of the Company.
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows has been amended as part of the IASB’s broader disclosure initiative to improve presentation
and disclosure in financial statements. The amendments will require disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash
changes. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017, with earlier application permitted.
The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or performance of the
Company.
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Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes- Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses
The amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on a comparison of the
carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is not affected by possible future
changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the asset. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on
financial position or performance of the Company.
Amendments to IFRS 2 - Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
IFRS 2 Share-Based Payment has been amended by IASB to improving consistency and resolve some long-standing
ambiguities in share-based payment accounting. The amendments cover three accounting areas: i) measurement of cashsettled share-based payments, ii) classification of share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and iii) accounting
for modification of a share-based payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. Also, same approach has been adopted for
the measurement of cash-settled share-based payments as equity-settled share-based payments. If certain conditions are
met, share-based payments settled net of tax withholdings are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payments. The
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted. The Company
is in the process of assessing the impact of the amendment on financial position or performance of the Company.
IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property
Amendments to IAS 40 - Transfers of Investment Property issued by IASB have been made to clarify uncertainty about that
provide evidence of transfer of/from investment property to other asset groups. A change in management’s intentions for
the use of property does not provide evidence of a change in intended use. Therefore, when an entity decides to dispose
of an investment property without development, it continues to treat the property as an investment property until it is
derecognized (eliminated from the statement of financial position) and does not reclassify it as inventory. Similarly, if an
entity begins to redevelop an existing investment property for continued future use as investment property, the property
remains an investment property and is not reclassified.
Improvements to IFRSs
The IASB issued Annual Improvements to IFRSs - 2014-2016 Cycle. The amendments are effective as of 1 January 2018.
Earlier application is permitted. The Company does not expect that these amendments will have significant impact on the
financial position or performance of the Company.

59

ZIRAAT REIT 2016 ANNUAL REPORT

Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle
IFRS 1 “First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards”
IFRS 1 is amended to clarify that the deletion of short-term exemptions for first-time adopters related to disclosures for
financial instruments, employee benefits and financial statements.
IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”
The amendments clarify that the entity is not required to disclose summarized financial information for that subsidiary,
joint venture or associate under the requirements of IFRS 12, when an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or an
associate (or a portion of its interest in a joint venture or an associate) is classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5.
IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”
The amendment enable when an investment in an associate or a joint venture is held by, or is held indirectly through, an
entity that is a venture capital organisation, or a mutual fund, unit trust and similar entities including investment-linked
insurance funds, the entity may elect to measure that investment at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with
IFRS 9.
2.5. Summary of significant accounting policies
Significant accounting policies applied during the preparation of the financial statements are summarised as follows:
2.5.1. Accounting of income and expense
Revenue
Revenue includes, rental income and income from allocation of expenses related with investment property to tenants,
interest income from the banks.
Rental income from investment property is recognised in profit or loss on an accrual basis.
Rental income from investment property leased out under operating lease is recognised in the income statement on a
straight line basis over the term of the lease.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.
Interest income and expense
Interest income is recognised through profit or loss on accrual basis by using the effective interest method.
If borrowing costs are totally related with an investment property in progress, these borrowing costs are included in the
cost of mentioned investment property. Other borrowing costs are recognised through profit or loss by using the effective
interest rate.
Other income and expenses
Foreign exchange gains/losses except totally related with an investment property in progress, are recognised in profit or loss
on a net basis. Other income and expenses are recognised through profit or loss on accrual basis
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2.5.2. Investment property
i) Operating investment property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale
in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on initial recognition and subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property.
Valuations reflect, where appropriate; the type of tenants actually in occupation or responsible for meeting lease
commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting of vacant accommodation and the market’s general perception of
their credit-worthiness; the allocation of maintenance and insurance responsibilities between lessor and lessee; and the
remaining economic life of the property.
It has been assumed, all notices have been served validly and within the appropriate time.
Accounting of rental income which is arising from investment property is mentioned at Note 2.5.1
ii) Investment property under construction
Investment property under construction are those which are held either to earn income or for capital appreciation or for
both, in the future. Investment property is measured initially at cost and after initial recognition, investment property is
carried at fair value and related changes are recognised in profit or loss. When the fair values of such properties cannot
be determined reliably until the construction is completed, the Company accounts for such investment property under
construction using the cost model until the date the construction is completed.
The cost of investment properties constructed by the Company includes, material costs, direct labour costs, all costs directly
associated with the development of an investment property, and capitalised borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly attributable to the investment property under construction. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the asset are in progress and expenditures and borrowing
costs are being incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs may continue until the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use.
2.5.3. Tangible assets
Revaluation method is used for the real estate properties which are held for own use in accordance with “TAS 16 - Property,
Plant and Equipment”. The positive difference between the net book value of real estate property values and the expertise
values which are determined by the certified valuation companies are recorded under the shareholders’ equity. In case
there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable amount of the related tangible asset is estimated within the framework
of “TAS 36 - Impairment of Assets” and impairment provision is set aside in case the recoverable amount is below its
acquisition cost.
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Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the tangible assets from the date of acquisition.
The estimated useful lives of tangible assets are as follows:
Buildings

50 years

Subsequent costs
Expenditures incurred to replace a component of tangible assets that is accounted for separately, including major inspection
and overhaul costs, are capitalised. Other subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the item of tangible assets. All other expenditures are recognised in profit or loss as expense as
incurred. The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of tangible assets is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
2.5.4. Intangible assets
Intangible assets are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of intangible assets is calculated on a straight-line basis over the inflation adjusted values of the useful life of
the related assets. The expected useful lives of intangible assets are 2-3 years.
2.5.5. Impairment of assets
The Company determines whether there are any indicators for impairment at every reporting period ended. In the case of an
indicator, the recoverable value of that asset is estimated. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In this case, the impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
2.5.6. Financial instruments
The Company has the following financial assets: cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables; and has the following
financial liabilities: trade payables.

62

ZIRAAT REIT 2016 ANNUAL REPORT

Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

i) Non derivative financial instruments
The Company initially recognises the financial assets on the date they are originated.
Financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transactions costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, non-derivative financial instruments are measured as described below:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are comprised of cash, bank balances with maturity periods of less than three-months and
other highly liquid short-term investments which are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. The carrying values of these assets are close to their fair values.
Trade receivables
Trade receivables are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, those assets are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impaired losses at each reporting dates. If there is an objective
evidence of uncollectibility, the Company books a provision for the doubtful receivables and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Provision is the difference between the carrying value of the receivables and probable amount of the collection. The
Company management believes that the carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate to their fair values.
ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities
The Company initially recognises non-derivative financial liabilities on the date that they are originated. All financial liabilities
are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
Financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
Company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
The Company has the following non-derivative financial liabilities: funds borrowed and trade payables.
Financial liabilities are recognized at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs are recognized initially.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost of by discounting future principal and
interest cash flows with effective interest rate.
iii) Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised
as deduction from equity, net of any tax effects.
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2.5.7. Foreign currency transactions
The financial statements of the Company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates. The results and financial position of the Company are expressed in TL, which are the functional currency of
the Company and the presentation currency for the financial statements.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at Central Bank’s exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
to functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Gains or losses on translation of foreign currency denominated
transactions to TL or presentation of foreign currency denominated monetary assets are recognised in profit of loss.
2.5.8. Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the period. Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, adjusted for own shares held
(see Note 18).
In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus shares”) to existing
shareholders from retained earnings and inflation adjustments on equity items. Such kind of bonus shares are taken into
consideration in the computation of earnings per share as issued share certificates.
2.5.9. Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period represent the events that occur against or on behalf of the Company between the
reporting date and the date when statement of financial position was authorised for the issue. There are two types of events
after the reporting period:
• those that provide evidence of conditions that existed as at reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and
• those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).
If there is evidence of such events as of reporting date or if such events occur after reporting date and if adjustments are
necessary, the Company’s financial statements are adjusted according to the new situation. The Company discloses the postbalance sheet events that are not adjusting events but material.
2.5.10. Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present implicit or legal obligation as a result of a past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the specified criteria are not met, the Company discloses the
related issues in the notes.
If the inflow of economic benefits is probable, contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. If the
inflow of the economic benefit is more than likely to occur, such asset and income statement effect are recognised in the
financial statements at the relevant period that income change effect occurs.
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2.5.11. Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
The Company as lessor in the operating lease transactions
Operating lease income is recognised in profit or loss with straight-line method through the term of the lease.
2.5.12. Related parties
Shareholders, key management and board members, in each case together with companies controlled by or affiliated with
them, and associated companies are considered and referred to as related parties. Transactions with the related parties
consist of the transfer of the assets and liabilities between related parties by a price or free of charge.
2.5.13. Segment reporting
The Company operates solely as real estate investments trust therefore segment information is not presented.
2.5.14. Government grants and incentives
As explained below in 2.5.15, the Company is exempted from the corporation tax because of its real estate investment trust
company status.
2.5.15. Taxation
Corporate income tax
According to Article 5/1(d) (4) of the New Corporate Tax Law No: 5220, the income of Real Estate Investment Trusts (“REIT”)
is exempt from Corporate Income Tax in Turkey. This exemption is also applicable to Quarterly Advance Corporate Tax.
According to New Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(3), the income of REITs is subject to 15% withholding tax irrespective of
its distribution. The Council of Ministers has the authority to increase the withholding tax rate on REIT income to corporate
income tax rate or reduce it to 0% or change it within the limits defined through publication of a Decree based on the
Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(4). In accordance with New Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(2), income subject to corporate tax
is also exempt from withholding tax.
According to temporary Article (1) of the New Corporate Tax Law, resolutions of the Council of Ministers related with
Income Tax Law numbered 193 and Tax Law No: 5422 are valid up to new Decrees published by the Council of Ministers and
determined rates cannot exceed statutory limits defined at New Corporate Tax Law.
Based on the resolution of the Council of Ministers numbered 2009/14594 related to the withholding tax rates which
were determined as 15% according to the New Corporate Tax Law Article 15/(3) published in the Official Gazette dated
3 February 2009 numbered 27130, the withholding tax rate is determined as 0% and this resolution is effective on the same date.
Thereof, in accordance with the Article 5/1(d) (4) of the New Corporate Tax Law, real estate investment company earnings,
regardless of the fact they are distributed or not, will be subject to 0% withholding.
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Deferred tax
According to TAS 12 - Income Taxes, deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which is used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Since the Company is exempt from Corporate Income Tax in Turkey in
accordance with Article 5 of the Corporate Tax Law, deferred tax is not recognised.
2.5.16. Employee benefits/reserve for employee severance indemnity
Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or involuntarily leaving the
Company.
The provision for employee severance indemnity has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable
obligation of the Company arising from the retirement of employees. Reserve for employee severance indemnity is calculated
based on the ceiling rate announced by the Government. At current period, provision for severance payments doesn’t occur due
to the fact that the employees of the company didn’t fill their one year legal period.
2.5.17. Statement of cash flows
The Company presents statement of cash flows as an integral part of other financial statements to inform the users of financial
statements about the changes in its net assets, its financial structure and its ability to manage the amount and timing of its cash
flows under new conditions. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand,
receivables from reverse repos and bank balances having maturities shorter than 3 months.
2.5.18. Restrictions on the investment portfolio of real estate investment
The information in “Control of compliance with restrictions on the investment portfolio” note are summary information prepared
from financial statements which are presented within the framework Communiqué II.14.1 in accordance with the accounting and
reporting principles accepted by the CMB and published in the Official Gazette dated 28 May 2013 numbered 28660, numbered
III-48.1 “Communiqué on Real Estate Investment Basis” related to control of compliance with restrictions on the investment
portfolio.

66

ZIRAAT REIT 2016 ANNUAL REPORT

Ziraat Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş.

FOR THE PERIOD 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - 31 DECEMBER 2016
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise stated.)

3. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
3.1. Due from/to related parties
31 December 2016
Cash and cash equivalents
Balance of T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
- Time deposits
Total

266.729.046
266.729.046
31 December 2016

Due from related parties
T.C Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Ziraat Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
Ziraat Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş.
Total

3.652.218
209.244
184.652
184.652
96.666
21.869
4.349.301
31 December 2016

Prepaid expenses
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat Emeklilik A.Ş.
Total

2.633
511
3.144

3.2. Income and expenses from related parties
Related party
T.C. Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Katılım Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Ziraat Finansal Kiralama A.Ş.
Ziraat Yatırım Menkul Değerler A.Ş.
Total

1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016
Rental Income
Interest Income
3.095.100
4.481.874
177.325
-156.485
-156.485
-81.921
-18.533
-3.685.849
4.481.874

Total
7.576.974
177.325
156.485
156.485
81.921
18.533
8.167.723
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For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016, the Company earns whole amount of its revenue from its related
parties.

Related party
T.C Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Ziraat Hayat Emeklilik A.Ş.
Ziraat Sigorta A.Ş.
Total

1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016
Salary reflection
expenses Insurance Expenses
115.325
--1.505
-82.002
115.325
83.507

Management
Expenses
5.359
--5.359

Total
120.684
1.505
82.002
204.191

Benefits provided to Company’s top executives
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016, total benefit which has been provided to Company’s top executives is
amounting to TL 97.995.
4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
As at 31 December 2016, cash and cash equivalents are as follows:
31 December 2016
266.729.046
266.729.046
266.729.046
(2.090.280)
264.638.766

Banks
- Time Deposits
Cash and cash equivalents
Interest income accruals on cash equivalents
Amounts based on the cash flow statement

As at 31 December 2016, the details of time deposits at banks, bank bonds and reverse repo are as follows:
Currency
TL
TL
Total
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5. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND TRADE PAYABLES
As at 31 December 2016, trade receivables are as follows:
Trade receivables
Short term trade receivables
Trade receivables from related parties (Note 3)
Total

31 December 2016
4.349.301
4.349.301

Long term trade receivables
As at 31 December 2016, Company has no long term trade receivables.
Trade payables
As at 31 December 2016, trade payables are as follows:
Short term trade payables
Trade payable
Total

31 December 2016
517.684
517.684

Long term trade payables
As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no long term trade payables.
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6. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
As at 31 December 2016, the details of investment property are as follow:
31 December 2016
396.667.905
643.290.000
1.039.957.905

Investment property under operating lease
Investment property under construction
Total
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 the details of investment properties are as follows:
Amount as noncash capital (*)

Purchases

Change in fair
value (Note 15) 31 December 2016

Investment property under operating
lease
Maslak Building
Beyoğlu Building
Beyazıt Building
Kozyatağı Building
Bahçekapı Building
Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet St.)
Kadıköy Building
Mecidiyeköy Building
Cağaloğlu Building
Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa St.)
Subtotal

126.300.000
69.472.000
36.600.000
26.995.944
26.350.000
25.380.000
25.410.000
21.610.000
17.760.000
14.090.000
389.967.944

------------

1.080.000
1.038.000
400.000
1.096.961
550.000
1.120.000
575.000
390.000
40.000
410.000
6.699.961

127.380.000
70.510.000
37.000.000
28.092.905
26.900.000
26.500.000
25.985.000
22.000.000
17.800.000
14.500.000
396.667.905

Investment property under construction
Land of Istanbul International Finance
Centre
Subtotal

643.000.000
643.000.000

149.360
149.360

140.640
140.640

643.290.000
643.290.000

Grand total

1.032.967.944

149.360

6.840.601

1.039.957.905

According to Communiqué on Principles Regarding Real Estate Investment Trusts (III-48.1) article 9, In partnership establishments and capital increases, only
without any mortgage or any non-recourse tangible assets rights based on real estate, which will directly and significantly affect the value of the real estate can
be invested as cash capital according to TCC 342 and 343. In the condition of investing capital as cash at foundation, the valuation of investing capital is done
according to TCC 343. According to this essence, the values in valuation report is considered for the investment properties and buildings.
(*)
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Fair value measurement
The investment properties are valued by an investment property valuation company which is authorized by CMB for
valuation services.
The levels of the investment properties presented in fair values are as follows:
Financial assets
Investment Property

31 December 2016
1.039.957.905

1. Level
--

2. Level
1.039.957.905

3. Level
--

As at 31 December 2016, the amount of insurance cover for investment properties is TL 33.768.131.
Land of Istanbul International Finance Centre
Land of Istanbul International Finance Centre is registered to Ümraniye/İstanbul Küçükbakkalköy neighborhood with 3328
city block and 3rd plot. It is a land with a place of 27.195,50 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 643.000.000 according to the report dated
24 February 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind
on 8 November 2016 by Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Land of Istanbul International Finance Centre Report has been
determined as TL 643.290.000 according to cost approach (project’s current completion rate of construction) based on the
report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the
investment property.
Maslak Building
Maslak Building is registered to Sarıyer/İstanbul M. Ayazağa neighborhood with 10 city block and 7rd plot. It is a massive
office 3 block with a place of 8.000 m2, which is featured as commercial complex, placed at main immovable’s blocks B and
C as 18 independent parts.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 126.300.000 according to the report dated
24 February 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on
9 November 2016 by Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Maslak Building Report has been determined as TL 127.380.000
according to capitalisation approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal
company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to
Ziraat Bankası. The Company earned TL 1.287.906 of rental income for the period.
Beyoğlu Building
Beyoğlu Building is registered to Beyoğlu/İstanbul Şehitmuhtar neighborhood with 381 city block and 1st plot. It is a building
with a place of 410 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 69.472.000 according to the report dated 24 February 2016
prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 9 November 2016 by
Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Beyoğlu Building Report has been determined as TL 70.510.000 according to market value
approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There
is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Ziraat Bankası. The Company earned
TL 475.810 of rental income for the period.
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Beyazıt Building
Beyazıt Building is registered to Fatih/İstanbul Mimarhayrettin neighborhood with 225 city block and 23rd plot. It is a land
and massive block bank building with a place of 362,50 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 36.600.000 according to the report dated
24 February 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on
10 November 2016 by Ziraat Bankası and Ziraat Katılım. The fair value of Beyazıt Building Report has been determined as
TL 37.000.000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate
appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this
property to Ziraat Bankası. The Company earned TL 392.945 of rental income for the period.
Kozyatağı Building
Kozyatağı Building is registered to Kadıköy/İstanbul Sahraicedit neighborhood with 1437 city block and 110th plot. It is twelvestorey ferroconcrete office building and land with a place of 682,16 m2. The company has classified the 8th and 9th floors
which constitutes 682,16 m2 of Kozyatağı Building as “buildings” at tangible assets account because it is used as a service
building.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 26.995.994 according to the report dated 24 February 2016
prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 8 November 2016 by
Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Kozyatağı Building Report has been determined as TL 28.092.905 according to market value
approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There
is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Ziraat Bankası. The Company earned
TL 261.067 of rental income for the period.
Bahçekapı Building
Bahçekapı Building is registered to Fatih/İstanbul Hobyar neighborhood with 398 city block and 12th plot. It is a massive
block building with three stores with a place of 378,50 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 26.350.000 according to the report dated
24 February 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on
10 November 2016 by Ziraat Bankası and Ziraat Yatırım. The fair value of Bahçekapı Building Report has been determined
as TL 26.900.000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real
estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this
property to Ziraat Bankası. The Company earned TL 250.309 of rental income for the period.
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Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet St.)
Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet St.) is registered to Fatih/İstanbul Çakırağa neighborhood with 1762 city block and 1st
plot. It is a nine-storey ferroconcrete building and a land with a place of 1.000,95 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 25.380.000 according to the report dated
24 February 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on
10 November 2016 by Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Aksaray Building (Turgut Özal Millet St.) Report has been determined
as TL 26.500.000 according to market value approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real
estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this
property to Ziraat Bankası and Ziraat Sigorta. The Company earned TL 294.100 of rental income for the period.
Kadıköy Building
Kadıköy Building is registered to Kadıköy/İstanbul Osmanağa neighborhood with 26 city block and 1st plot. It is a massive
block building with a place of 477,50 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 25.410.000 according to the report dated 24 February 2016
prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 8 November 2016 by
Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Kadıköy Building Report has been determined as TL 25.985.000 according to capitalization
approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There
is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Ziraat Bankası and Ziraat Katılım. The
Company earned TL 229.518 of rental income for the period.
Mecidiyeköy Building
Mecidiyeköy Building is registered to Şişli/İstanbul Mecidiyeköy neighborhood with 2158 city block and 52nd plot. It is a
massive block apartment with a bank under with a place of 265,20 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 21.610.000 according to the report dated 24 February 2016
prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 10 November 2016 by
Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Mecidiyeköy Building Report has been determined as TL 22.000.000 according to market
value approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB.
There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Ziraat Bankası and Ziraat
Finansal Kiralama. The Company earned TL 163.102 of rental income for the period.
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Cağaloğlu Building
Cağaloğlu Building is registered to Fatih/İstanbul Alemdar neighborhood with 33 city block and 22nd plot. It is a garden
workplace with a place of 1.286,20 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 17.760.000 according to the report dated 24 February 2016
prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 10 November 2016 by
Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Cağaloğlu Building Report has been determined as TL 17.800.000 according to market value
approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB. There
is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Ziraat Bankası and Ziraat Katılım. The
Company earned TL 183.668 of rental income for the period.
Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa St.)
Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa St.) is registered to Fatih/İstanbul Çakırağa neighborhood with 1763 city block and 8th plot. It is
a massive block bank and a land with a place of 426 m2.
The value of the investment property has been determined as TL 14.090.000 according to the report dated 24 February 2016
prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 10 November 2016 by
Ziraat Bankası. The fair value of Aksaray Building (Cerrahpaşa St.) Report has been determined as TL 14.500.000 according
to market value approach based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed
by CMB. There is no restriction on the investment property. The Company has rented this property to Ziraat Bankası, Ziraat
Sigorta and Ziraat Emeklilik. The Company earned TL 147.424 of rental income for the period.
Operating leases
The Company as lessor
The Company has signed operating lease agreements with Ziraat Bankası, Ziraat Finansal Kiralama, Ziraat Sigorta, Ziraat
Emeklilik, Ziraat Yatırım and Ziraat Katılım as lessor. The future minimum lease payments as at 31 December 2016 under noncancellable leases are as follows:
Less than one year
Between one and five years
Total
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7. TANGIBLE ASSETS
The movement in tangible assets as at 31 December 2016 are as follows:
Amount as noncash capital (*)

Increase on
revaluation
(Note 12)

31 December 2016

3.274.056
3.274.056

143.953
143.953

3.418.009
3.418.009

(10.914)
(10.914)

---

(10.914)
(10.914)

Cost
Buildings
Accumulated depreciation (-)
Buildings

Net Book Value
(*)

3.263.142

3.407.095

As explained detailed at Note 6, invested as non-cash capital by Ziraat Bankası.

The company has classified the 8th and 9th floors which constitutes 682,16 m2 of Kozyatağı Building as “buildings” at tangible
assets account because it is used as a service building.
Measurement of fair values
Buildings have been evaluated by a real estate appraisal company which has been authorized by CMB for the valuation
services.
The levels of the buildings presented in fair values are as follows:
Financial instruments
Tangible Assets

31 December 2016
3.407.095

1. Level
--

2. Level
3.407.095

3. Level
--

The value of the buildings has been determined as TL 3.274.056 according to the report dated 24 February 2016 prepared by
real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB and it was devolved as capital in kind on 8 November 2016 by Ziraat Bankası.
The fair value of Kozyatağı Office (Floor 8 and 9) has been determined as TL 3.407.095 according to market value approach
based on the report dated 30 December 2016 prepared by real estate appraisal company licensed by CMB.
As at 31 December 2016, the insurance cover of buildings is TL 533.055.
As at 31 December 2016, there is not any pledge on tangible assets.
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8. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The movement in intangible assets between the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 are as follows:
1 November 2016

Additions

31 December 2016

53.100
53.100

17.500
17.500

70.600
70.600

---

(3.193)
(3.193)

(3.193)
(3.193)

Cost
Other intangible assets
Depreciation (-)
Other intangible assets

Net Book Value

53.100

67.407

As at 31 December 2016 the Company does not have any internally developed intangible assets.
9. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Provisions
As at 31 December 2016 the Company has no provisions.
Legal Cases
As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no legal cases.
Collaterals received
As at 31 December 2016, the details of letter of collaterals received are as follows:
Collaterals received
Total

31 December 2016
1.423.164
1.423.164

Letters of guarantee received consist of letters of guarantee received from banks for Istanbul Financial Centre Project
buildings project management services.
Letter of Guaranties, Securities and Mortgages (LSM)
As at 31 December 2016 Company has no LSM.
10. PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
As at 31 December 2016 in accordance with TAS 19 Company has no provision for employee benefits.
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11. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER ASSETS AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Prepayments
31 December 2016
3.144
955
34
4.133

Related parties (Note 3)
Advances
Job advances
Total
Other non-current assets

31 December 2016
358.739
138
358.877

Prepaid taxes and duties
Deposits and guarantees given
Total
Other short-term liabilities

31 December 2016
627.315
627.315

Taxes and duties payable
Total
12. EQUITY
12.1 Paid in capital
As at 31 December 2016 the issued and fully paid-in share capital of the Company is as follows:
T.C Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
T.C Ziraat Bankası A.Ş.
Total

%
20,29
79,71

31 December 2016
263.758.000
1.036.242.000
1.300.000.000

Group
A
B

The Company has been established with registered capital ceiling is TL 3.000.000.000 registered shares of TL 1. The
Company’s nominal capital value is amounting to TL 1.300.000.000 and had been portioned to 1.300.000.000 shares. All
capital value has been subscribed by the founders; amounting to TL 263.758.000 has been paid as cash, amounting to
TL 1.036.242.000 has been paid in kind (land and property).
The Company shares are issued into two type of groups; Group A and Group B to names. The cession of registered share
certificate’s cannot be restricted. Capital increases in the Group A and B shares are issued as the Group A and B shares,
respectively. However, if the BOD restricts the right of owning new shares for shareholders, new shares are issued as the
Group B shares.
The Group A shares have the right to vote for the election of members of the Board of Directors (“BOD”). All members
of the Board of Directors except for the independent members are elected from the candidates from group A nominated
by the shareholders. Independent candidates are elected by the General Assembly among the candidates nominated by
shareholders A and B.
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12.2 Other comprehensive income that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
As of 31 December 2016, accumulated other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss are consisted of
tangible asset valuation.
Revaluation surplus of tangible asset
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 revaluation surplus of tangible asset is as follows:
Opening balance
Change in period
Closing balance

2016
-143.953
143.953

The company has adopted its valuation method of building that are accounted for under tangible assets as “revaluation
method”. The difference between revalued amount and cost value is recognised as Other Comprehensive Income
Accumulated that will not be Reclassified to Profit or Loss” under equity account. The relevant property, tangible assets
revaluation fund covers the value increases between the revalued amounts and costs of the service building in Kozyatağı.
13. REVENUE AND COST OF SALES
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 revenue is as follows:

Rental income
Total property income

1 November31 December 2016
3.685.849
3.685.849

Interest income on deposits
Total income from debt securities

4.481.874
4.481.874

Total revenue

8.167.723

The Company earns whole amount of its revenue from its related parties.
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 cost of sales are as follows:

Insurance expenses
Total cost of sales
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14. OPERATING EXPENSES
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 operating expenses are as follows:

Foundation and organisation expenses
Personnel salaries and expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses
Total

1 November31 December 2016
880.978
197.381
14.107
53.307
1.145.773

For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 marketing expenses are as follows:

Advertising expenses
Total

1 November31 December 2016
276.700
276.700

15. OTHER OPERATING INCOME/EXPENSES
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 other operating income are as follows:

Increase in fair value of investment properties
Total

1 November31 December 2016
6.840.601
6.840.601

For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 the Company has no other operating expenses.
16. FINANCE INCOME/COSTS
For the period 1 November 2016 - 31 December 2016 the Company has no finance income or costs.
17. TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
According to Article 5/1(d) (4) of the New Corporate Tax Law numbered 5520, the income of real estate investment trusts is
exempt from Corporate Income Tax in Turkey.
Since the Company is exempt from the Corporate Tax in accordance with the law, deferred tax was not calculated.
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18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share stated in income statement is calculated by dividing net income for the period by the weighted average
number of the Company’s shares for the period. Calculation of the earnings per share for the period 1 November 2016 31 December 2016 are presented below:
Net income/(loss) (TL)
Average number of shares available during the period
Earnings/(costs) per share (TL)

2016
13.584.812
1.300.000.000
0,0104

19. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISK ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its operations:
• credit risk,
• liquidity risk,
• market risk.
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19.1. Credit Risk
The ownership of the financial assets brings the risk of not meeting the obligations of the agreement of the counter party.
All of the company’s rental contracts are done with related parties. In addition, cash owned by the Company is assessed in
Ziraat Bankası, the company’s partner.
As at 31 December 2016 credit risk exposure of financial assets are as follows:

31 December 2016
Exposure to maximum credit risk
as of reporting date
(A+B+C+D)
- Maximum credit risk amount
secured with guarantees
A. Net book value of neither past
due nor impaired financial
assets
B. Net book value of past due but
not impaired financial assets
- Net book value secured with
guarantees
C. Net book value of impaired
assets
- Past due (Gross amount)
- Impairment (-)
- Net book value secured with
guarantees
- Not past due (Gross amount)
- Impairment (-)
- Net book value secured with
guarantees
D. Off balance sheet items with
credit risks

Receivables
Trade Receivables
Other Receivables
Related
Other
Related
Other
parties
parties
parties
parties

Bank
deposits

Other

4.349.301

--

--

-- 266.729.046

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

4.349.301

--

--

-- 266.729.046

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

--

----

----

----

----

----

----

----

----

----

----

----

----

--

--

--

--

--

--
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19.2. Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company to match the net funding requirements with sufficient liquidity. The Company
uses its funds from borrowings in investment property project developments.
The following table presents the Company’s financial liabilities including interest payments according to their remaining
contractual maturities.
31 December 2016

Contractual maturities
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade payables

Carrying
Value

Total expected
cash outflow
(=I+II+III+IV)

Up to
3 months
(I)

3 months to
12 months
(II)

1 year to
5 years
(III)

More than
5 years
(IV)

517.684
517.684

517.684
517.684

517.684
517.684

---

---

---

As at 31 December 2016, the Company does not have any derivative financial liabilities.
19.3. Market risk
The Company is exposed to various market risks, including the effects of changes in exchange rates, interest rates, equity
prices and credit spreads.
Foreign currency risk
Exchange risk comprises the effects arising from exchange movements in the event foreign currency assets, liabilities and offbalance sheet items are owned.
As at 31 December 2016, the Company has no foreign currency transactions.
Interest rate risk
The Company is exposed to interest rate risk due to interest bearing assets and liabilities
The table below shows the financial instruments sensitive to interest rates as at 31 December 2016:
Interest rate position table
Financial assets
- Banks deposits
The company has no floating rate financial instruments.
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19.4. Capital management
The Company manages its capital by reducing its investment risk to the lowest level with effective portfolio management.
The aim of the Company is to maintain sustainable returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Company considers having a strong capital
structure for future investments beside the legislation in its dividend distribution policy.
20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The fair value of an asset is the amount at which that asset could be bought or sold in a current transaction between willing
parties.
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value for financial assets
and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to
that asset or liability.
Following assumptions and methods are used to estimate fair value of financial instruments, if fair values are applicable.
Financial assets
The Company assumes that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables are close to their fair
value because of their short-term nature.
Financial liabilities
The Company assumes that the carrying values of the trade payables and other liabilities are close to their fair value because
of their short-term nature.
21. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
None.
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APPENDIX I COMPLIANCE CONTROL OF THE PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS
According to the Communiqué Serial: III, No. 48.1 promulgated by CMB, “Communiqué on Principles Regarding Real Estate
Investment Companies”, compliance control of the portfolio restrictions of the Company is as follows:
A
B
C

The main accounts of financial statements
Capital and money market instruments
Real estates, rights supported by real estates and real estate
projects
Subsidiaries
Due from related parties (other receivables)
Other assets

Related regulation
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(b)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(a)

31 December 2016
266.729.046
1.039.957.905

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(b)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 23/(f)

--8.186.813

D

Total assets (Total active)

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 3/(p)

1.314.873.764

E
F
G
H
I

Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Leasing payables
Payables from related parties (non-commercial)
Equity
Other liabilities

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 31
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 31
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 31
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 23/(f)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 31

----1.313.728.765
1.144.999

D

Total liabilities and equity

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 3/(p)

1.314.873.764

Other separate financial information
Capital and money market instruments amount held for
3-year real estate payments
Time balances/demand balances TL/foreign currency
Foreign capital market instruments
Foreign real estates, rights supported by real estates and real
estate projects
Inactive land
Foreign subsidiaries
Participating to operating company
Non-cash loans
Mortgage amounts of the mortgaged lands that the project
will be developed on without ownership
The sum of investments in money and capital market
instruments in a single company

Related regulation
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(b)

31 December 2016
239.105.046

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(b)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(d)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(d)

266.729.046
---

A1
A2
A3
B1
B2
C1
C2
J
K
L
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Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(c)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(d)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 28/1 (a)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 31
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 22/(e)

------

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 22/(l)

--
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1

2

3

4

5
6
7
8

9

Portfolio restrictions
Mortgage amounts of the
mortgaged lands that the
project will be developed
on without ownership
Real estates, rights
supported by real estates
and real estate projects
Capital and money
market instruments and
subsidiaries
Foreign real estates, rights
supported by real estates
and real estate projects,
subsidiaries and capital
market instruments
Inactive land
Participating to operating
company
Borrowings limits
Time balances/demand
balances TL/foreign
currency
The sum of investments in
money and capital market
instruments in a single
company

Related regulation
31 December 2016 Max/Min ratio
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 22/(e) 0%
Max 10%

Calculation
K/D

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article
24/(a), (b)

Min 51%

(B+A1)/D

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(b) 38%

Max 49%

(A+C-A1)/D

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(d) 0%

Max 49%

(A3+B1+C1)/D

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(c)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article
28/1(a)
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 31
Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 24/(b)

0%
0%

Max 20%
Max 10%

B2/D
C2/D

0%
2%

Max 500%
Max 10%

(E+F+G+H+J)/İ
(A2-A1)/D

Serial:III, No:48.1, Article 22/(l)

0%

Max 10%

L/D

97%
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